State of Michigan – RFP # 071I9200184
Travel Administrator Services – Statewide 
Questions & Answers 


	Number
	Bidder Question
	State of Michigan Response

	1. 
	Please define and elaborate on the term "Professional Travel Agency".  What criteria are used by SOM to consider a company as a "Professional Travel Agency"?





	Professional Travel Agency will be defined by the corporate information provided and the registration of the business with the required state agency and information requested in Section 4.011 of the RFP.  Other factors will be the experience of staff allocated to the account.

	2. 
	Is it necessary for the Bidder to have a physical walk-in location in Michigan?







	No physical Michigan walk-in location is required.






	3. 
	How would the Contractor determine if the booked itinerary is for professional/business purpose or for a personal trip?


	All itineraries are sent to department personnel that reconcile travel booked with travel approved.  All travel is approved by the individuals department.  Employee is held accountable for all reservations made and appropriate allocation of business/personal.

	4. 
	How would the Contractor confirm the identity of a caller?  How would the Contractor know if he/she is authorized to make a booking?








	Profile information provided by the employee through their department that is loaded and maintained by the travel agency.


	5. 
	Would all the transactions be considered pre-approved (for the authorized people on the list provided by CCI) or would there be a person authorizing all transactions on behalf of SOM?


	Most departments will allow travelers to conduct business as pre-approved some (few) will require a call to approve travel prior to completing a reservation.  Approval is based on individual department preferences.  

	6. 
	Please define and elaborate on the term "Professional Travel Agent(s)".  What criteria are used by SOM to consider a person as a

"Professional Travel Agent"?



	Training, experience and any certifications/education received.

	7. 
	


	

	8. 
	How many domestic agents and international agents does SOM anticipate the Contractor to provide?


	The ability to offer flexibility for high volume periods will be important but 2-4 domestic and 1 international (experience and certification/education in this area will be a plus).

	9. 
	It is understood from the RFP that the Contractor would be providing a Pseudo City Code (PCC) exclusively for SOM.  Is there any requirement for which specific GDS/CRS is to be used?  Would any

personnel from SOM be expected to have access to the same PCC?  If so, who would be responsible for these costs?


	No specific GDS/CRS is required.  However, the State of Michigan accounts have utilized SABRE and Worldspan in the past.  No personnel from the SOM are expected to personally access the GDS/CRS or PCC.  

	10. 
	As per the RFP, SOM has specific Travel Policy/guidelines which would need to be followed. Can you please provide access to the policy/guidelines as it may help in preparing a better response to the RFP?


	See the travel policy outline at the end of this document.  

	11. 
	The Contractor would need to provide an online travel reservation portal for this RFP.  Is this portal expected to be an Intranet or an Internet site?


	Internet site/access is preferred.

	12. 
	Does the state expect to have a private-labeled (customized URL) online travel portal?


	Flexible - based on security and reporting options.

	13. 
	Who would be responsible for hosting this travel portal?


	The Contracted travel agency.

	14. 
	Would any existing profile(s), data or database(s) be transferred form the incumbent to the awarded Bidder or are all authorized SOM employees expected to register again in the new system?




	Employees would be asked to register again, but information may be transferred from the incumbent to the awarded bidder, if necessary, for the continuity of the travel for those trips booked, but not completed.

	15. 
	Could you please provide the anticipated number of authorized SOM employees who would need access to the system?


	Approximately 2,000.

	16. 
	Would the SOM employees be allowed to fulfill their personal travel requirements through this Contract as well, which would be billed separately to their individual personal accounts?


	Employees are allowed to book through the Contractor for personal travel billed to their personal accounts.

	17. 
	As per the new federal guidelines under the "TSA Secure Flight Program", it has become mandatory to collect the Full Name, DOB, Gender and other personal information about each passenger by August 15, 2009 for domestic and October 31, 2009 for international flights. Would the SOM be providing this mandatory information for all authorized users?

Does SOM anticipate any issues due to these new requirements?


	Yes, all authorized users would be required to complete a profile with required information.

	18. 
	Please define and elaborate the term "Travel Credit Account"?




	A ghost charge account for the purpose of charging all air travel to.  This account is a Visa or Mastercard account. 


	19. 
	
	

	20. 
	Would the Contractor be allowed to charge an extra service fee for Emergency/After-Hours service?


	Yes, but you must identify this and include it in your price proposal.

	21. 
	Does SOM have any preferred carrier(s) and/or cabin (economy/business/first)?


	No preferred carriers at this time.  All travelers are required to book the least expensive accommodation on any one flight.

	22. 
	Does SOM have any existing special contracts/discounts with any specific airline(s), hotel(s) and/or rental car(s)?





	Rental car only with National and Enterprise.

	23. 
	Does SOM anticipate utilizing any non-GDS content like low-cost airlines (Southwest, Spirit etc.)?

	Yes.

	24. 
	Can the Contractor utilize non-published discounted rates from various wholesalers/consolidators, especially for international travel?
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 

	The Contractor can offer these rates in conjunction with the lowest published fares offered in the GDS/CRS and must provide the cost savings reporting information.

	25. 
	Can the Contractor utilize pre-paid hotel/car content which may be cheaper?

	Yes, if it provides a cost savings and the savings can be documented by comparing current rates offered in the GDS/CRS.

	26. 
	Nowadays, most of the airlines’ tickets are Non Refundable or have large penalties for changes/cancellations to get the cheapest

price.  Does SOM utilize such fares or only refundable fares which would be more expensive? In case of changes/cancellations, does SOM understand that they would be responsible for these penalties even though they won't be paying any service fees?

	Yes, the State of Michigan does utilize non-refundable tickets regularly and all travelers are aware that there are change/cancellation fees associated with these fares that are the responsibility of the traveler/department.

	27. 
	Can the SOM please provide more details on the number of rail bookings and the revenue generated from the same in the past?
	In 2008, 58 rail tickets were issued.  

	28. 
	Are the Rail Bookings just for domestic or do they also include international (EuroRail, etc.)?

	EuroRail has never been booked and probably would not be required.  

	29. 
	What is the unique pseudo city code, how are these generated, and where can I find these?
	These are obtained through the Global Distribution System that is utilized for booking travel.

	30. 
	Can we get a copy of the Service/Admin fee schedule?
	The current Service Fee is $32.00 for all air tickets issued, but may be subject to change.

	31. 
	If I submit an innovative proposal option in response to this RFP that assumes the state will do the travel booking, will it be considered?
	The State of Michigan is not in the position to become a travel agent and book their own travel.
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THE STATE OF MICHIGAN
 
Travel Management Program 

 
TRAVEL POLICY REFERENCES

Please refer to your departments’ individual travel policy and procedures.

The Department of Management and Budget maintains a travel website at www.michigan.gov/dmb under Agency Services/Travel.  Information listed here includes the following:

· Standardized Travel Regulations

· Hotel Listing

· Travel Reimbursement Rates

· Travel Expense Voucher

· Travel Expense Exception Request

· Department Travel Contacts

· Foreign Travel Per Diems

Administrative Guide to Government can also be found on the DMB website at www.michigan.gov/dmb under Organization.  This guide contains the Travel Expense Voucher Procedure 0420.02 which outlines what is required on a voucher. 

TRAVEL AGENCY 

 The State of Michigan contracts with one travel agency for air, hotel, car, and rail reservation services.  The contracted travel agency will provide airline and rail ticketing billing to the individual departments’ travel account. 

The use of the travel agency is required for all airline reservations, and hotel reservations in excess of the state rate ($65.00 plus tax), excluding conference hotels as provided in Standardized Travel Regulations Section 6.8 A.  

Please be aware that in all cases when travel plans must be cancelled it is your responsibility to contact the travel agency to notify them of the change in travel.

 

AIRLINES 

Travelers are encouraged to book in advance and obtain the most cost effective ticketing possible.  Please refer to your department’s policy in obtaining out-of-state travel authorization prior to making reservations.  

The use of non-refundable fares is desired due to their lower costs.  However, there will be circumstances based on travel reasons or costs that a refundable fare will be the most cost effective.  If you have questions regarding cost differences between a non-refundable and a refundable fare please contact your finance area.  Finance will determine which fare is most cost effective.  

  
STATE AIRCRAFT

The State of Michigan, Department of Transportation, Air Transport has been flying state employees on business since the 1930’s.  This service is available to all state employees and invited guests.  This service should be considered if traveling in a group of two or more.  In some cases combining a single traveler with another department’s trip may be more cost efficient.  Air Transport can be reached at (517) 335-9986 for more information and costs.

 

CAR RENTALS

Departments must approve car rentals prior to reservations.  Approved travelers can obtain reservations through the contracted travel agency.

HOTELS

Employees are required to book lodging at or below the published “state rate” currently $65.00 a night plus tax.  Exception is conference hotels which can be booked directly by the traveler or arranger based on the published conference rate and facility.  Documentation should be submitted to support the conference rate with your travel expense voucher.  All lodging requires receipts to be submitted for reimbursement.

The State of Michigan maintains a list of hotel properties in Michigan that offer a special “state government rate”.  Please see the current listing at www.michigan.gov/dmb under Agency Services/Travel.  The list contains hotels that offer $65.00 or less per night and these can be contacted directly by the traveler or arranger for reservations.  The list also contains hotels that can not offer a $65.00 a night rate but offer a reduced rate for state government travel.  These hotels travelers are required to book through the travel agency for full reimbursement. 

The contracted travel agency will assist travelers with all hotel reservations both in-state and out-of-state at any time. The travel agency will offer properties within the location of your travel destination that are a 2 or 3 level rated hotel that offer the most cost effective options.  Please be aware that the contracted travel agency cannot issue a confirmation on lodging reservations booked by the traveler.  Travelers must book hotels in excess of the state rate through the contracted travel agency for full reimbursement.  Reminder, conference hotels can be booked at the conference rate directly by the traveler regardless of the cost of the conference rate.
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